

DRAFT MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE CABINET MONDAY, 22 JANUARY 2024

THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, HACKNEY TOWN HALL, MARE STREET, LONDON, E8 1EA

| Councillors Present: | Mayor Caroline Woodley in the Chair |
|-------------------------|---|
| | Deputy Mayor Anntoinette Bramble (Vice-Chair), Cllr Robert Chapman, Cllr Mete Coban, Cllr Susan Fajana-Thomas (Part), Cllr Christopher Kennedy, Cllr Clayeon McKenzie, Cllr Guy Nicholson and Cllr Carole Williams (Part) |
| Apologies: | Cllr Sem Moema |
| Officers in Attendance: | Mark Agnew, Governance Officer Dawn Carter-McDonald, Interim Chief Executive Sandra Farquharson, Director of Human Resources and Organisational Development Louise Humphreys, Acting Director of Legal, Democratic & Electoral Services Rickardo Hyatt, Group Director Neighbourhoods & Housing Gerry McCarthy, Head of Community Safety, Enforcement & Business Regulation Tessa Mitchell, Team Leader, Governance Services Jackie Moylan, Interim Group Director, Finance Donna Thomas, Assistant Director, Early Years, Early Help & Well-being Joe Willson, Interim Assistant Director, SEND and Inclusion |

1 Apologies for Absence

1.1 Apologies were received from Cllr Moema, and Cllr Fajana-Thomas confirmed she would join the meeting late.

2 Declarations of Interest

2.1 In relation to agenda item 15, CED S294 Hackney a Place for Everyone – Voluntary and Community Sector Grants Programme 2024/25, Deputy Mayor Bramble confirmed they were a trustee of Hackney Playbus; Cllr Coban confirmed they were a member of the BADU advisory board; Cllr Kennedy confirmed they were a member of the London Community Credit Union and Hackney Foodbank; Cllr Fajana-Thomas also confirmed their membership of the London Community Credit Union; and, Cllr Williams confirmed they were a trustee of Shoreditch Trust.

3 Urgent Unrestricted Business

3.1 There was no urgent business for consideration.

4 Notice of Intention to Conduct Business in Private, Any Representations Received and the Response to Such Representations

4.1 No representations were received.

5 Questions/Deputations

5.1 No questions were received.

6 Unrestricted Minutes of the Previous Meeting of Cabinet

RESOLVED: To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting of Cabinet held on 11 December 2023 as a correct record.

7 Unrestricted Minutes of the Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee

RESOLVED: To note the minutes of the Cabinet Procurement and Insourcing Committee (CPIC) held on 4 December 2023.

8 F S213 2023/24 Overall Financial Position Report - November 2023

- 8.1 Mayor Caroline Woodley provided context for the report and highlighted that the Government had again failed to provide assistance to Local Authorities, but that both herself and Cllr Robert Chapman, Cabinet Member for Finance, Insourcing and Customer Service, had recently written to Ministers lobbying for changes to the Local Government Finance Settlement.
- 8.2 Introducing the report, Cllr Chapman highlighted that the overspend in the current year had increased to £11.3m, with the recent increase due to additional pressures in Adult Social Care. Cllr Chapman confirmed that there would be difficult decisions that would need to be made as a result of the lack of support from the Government, which had seen a real term decrease of £150m per year since 2010. However, as long as the Council was able to continue to address these issues they would avoid having to make emergency recommendations like other Local Authorities were having to do.

Cllr Williams joined the meeting after the start of this agenda item so was unable to vote on the recommendations.

RESOLVED:

- 1. To approve the savings set out at paragraph 2.9 of this report.
- 2. To note the overall financial position of the Council as at November 2023 as set out in this report.

REASONS FOR DECISION

To facilitate financial management and control of the Council's finances and to approve the savings schemes.

DETAILS OF ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

This budget monitoring report is primarily an update on the Council's financial position.

9 F S212 Capital Update and Property Disposals And Acquisitions Report

- 9.1 Mayor Woodley noted that despite financial pressures the Council was still able to invest into the Borough, and welcomed the proposed funding for Hackney Central Library, the Carnival, Discover Young Hackney, Hackney Circle, the Windrush programme, Hackney Pride 365, the Black History season, and the upgrading of IT systems.
- 9.2 Cllr Chapman spoke of the investment into the Mosaic IT system, which was a vital part of the Council's management of both adult and children's social care, and that the investment into Hackney Central Library would facilitate better use by the community and by partners.
- 9.3 Cllr Christopher Kennedy, Cabinet Member for Health, Adult Social Care, Voluntary Sector and Culture, welcomed the confirmation that Hackney Carnival would happen for the first time in four years.

RESOLVED:

1. That the scheme for Finance and Corporate Resources Directorate as set out in section 11 be given approval as follows:

Mosaic ICT System Development Strategy: Resource and spend approval of **£1,257k (£571k in 2024/25, £481k in 2025/26 and £205k in 2026/27**) is requested to enable Council Officers to progress with the transformation development work on the Mosaic ICT System.

2. That the s106 & CIL Capital funded scheme summarised below and set out in section 11 be approved:

| S106 | 2024/25 £'000 |
|---------------------------------------|---------------|
| Capital | 425 |
| Total S106 & CIL Capital for Approval | 425 |

3. That the CIL Revenue summarised below and set out in section 11 be approved:

| CIL | 2024/25 £'000 |
|--------------------------------|---------------|
| Revenue | 500 |
| Total CIL Revenue for Approval | 500 |

REASONS FOR DECISION

The reasons for the decision were included in the printed decisions, published on the 23 January 2024, and can be <u>found here</u>.

DETAILS OF ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

None.

10 F S241 2024/25 Council Taxbase and Local Business Rates Income Report

- 10.1 Mayor Woodley thanked Officers for their work in preparing this report, which would provide the framework to the Council's budget and Council Tax in the next financial year
- 10.3 Introducing the report, Cllr Chapman confirmed that the report laid out what the Council expected to collect in relation to both Council Tax and Business Rates in the next year, and noted that there had been a small, but steady, improvement in collection rates. Cllr Chapman also highlighted that the report was seeking to amend the policy on empty homes, to move the point when the empty homes premium becomes payable from 2 years to 1 year, and was also giving notice that the Council intended to apply a premium on second homes from 2025/26.
- 10.3 Following the results of a recorded vote, as set out below, the recommendations were agreed.

For: (8 Members) Deputy Mayor Bramble, Cllr Chapman, Cllr Coban, Cllr Kennedy, Cllr McKenzie, Cllr Nicholson, Cllr Williams, and Mayor Woodley.

Against: 0

Abstentions: 0

Cllr Fajana-Thomas joined the meeting after the start of this agenda item so was unable to vote on the recommendations.

RESOLVED:

- 1. Recommend to Council that, in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by Hackney Council as its Council Tax Base for 2024/25 shall be 77,766.9 Band D equivalent properties adjusted for non-collection. This represents an estimated collection rate of 93.5%.
- 2. Recommend to Council that in accordance with The Non-Domestic Rating (Rates Retention) Regulations 2013 Hackney's non-domestic rating income for 2024/25 is £179,559,273 subject to verification by the Academy (our Revenues Software supplier) software release. This comprises three elements.
 - £66,209,106 which is payable in agreed instalments to the Greater London Authority
 - £54,298,802 which is retained by Hackney Council and included as part of its resources when calculating the 2024/24 Council Tax requirement.

- £59,051,365 which is payable in agreed instalments to Central Government
- 3. To note that changes to the current CTRS scheme in 2024/25 were agreed by Cabinet in December 2023.
- 4. Recommend to Council that it approves a proposal to levy a council tax premium equal to a 100% of the Council tax charge in 2024/25 on any liable property which is unoccupied and substantially unfurnished for a continuous period of at least one year.
- 5. Recommend to Council that we signal our intent prior to 1st April 2024 that we will levy second homes premium from 1st April 2025.

The reasons for the decision were included in the printed decisions, published on the 23 January 2024, and can be <u>found here</u>.

DETAILS OF ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

The requirement to calculate the Council Tax base and business rates has been laid down by Statute. As such, there are no alternatives to be considered.

11 CE S293 Children's Centres Childcare Consultation

- 11.1 Mayor Woodley introduced the report by thanking colleagues across the Council for their work progressing this work, which included broadening 4 children's centres into Children and Family Hubs, and undertaking a Commission into affordable childcare to best understand how the children's centre network operated and how best to make it sustainable. There was a commitment to maintaining as much of the network as possible.
- 11.2 The Mayor also noted that the independent financial review had raised some difficult questions, especially in the context of increasingly challenging financial considerations across the Council. The sustainability of early years provision continued to be threatened by the rising childcare delivery costs, as well as the challenges of finding sufficient staff, all while Local Authorities continued to struggle with insufficient central funding. The Mayor confirmed that universal services for babies in the first 1001 days would remain a focus of the Hubs, and support would be put in place for families with children aged 0-19 as part of an integrated system of support.
- 11.3 Cllr Carole Williams, Cabinet Member for Employment, Human Resources and Equalities, asked about the timing of the publication of the papers and the Mayor confirmed that the delay of publication, as a result of the Cazenove Byelection, had been publicised and that the proposed report had been on the Forward Plan since November 2023. Delaying publication by a month might have threatened the amount of time that the Council could dedicate to the consultation from the 12 weeks that were proposed.

RESOLVED:

Cabinet is recommended to agree that:

- 1. A 12 week statutory consultation and engagement period on the restructuring of early education and childcare provision delivered by the children's centres funded by the Council to deliver subsidised childcare, as a means to achieving greater efficiency. The consultation is scheduled to commence on 31 January to 24 April 2024.
- 2. Following the conclusion of the consultation, to consider the results of the consultation and recommendations on the restructuring of early education and childcare provision.

REASONS FOR DECISION

The reasons for the decision were included in the printed decisions, published on the 23 January 2024, and can be <u>found here</u>.

DETAILS OF ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

The option to significantly increase fees to recover a greater portion of expenditure if implemented, may discourage families from accessing the children's centre provision, and therefore have a negative impact on occupancy. The provision may also become affordable to higher income families at the exclusion of lower income families. We have seen a reduction in higher income families since introducing the new fee bands and post Covid. For this reason, this option is not being acted on as suggested. Instead, annual increases to nursery fees will continue to be subject to inflation and in doing so will continue to significantly taper the subsidy to higher fee bands.

Opportunities identified during the review in collaboration with a stakeholder reference group to test and refine 3 levers to reduce expenditure, increase income and refine the model are set out in the executive summary of the E&Y Report: Appendix 1, attached to the exempt appendices section of this report.

As part of the SEND Strategy 2022-25, and the Early Years Strategy 2021-26, one centre in the north of the borough is in scope to reprovision by 2025 into an Additional Resource Provision (ARP) to support children with complex needs. Respondents to the recent 2023 Children and Family Hubs consultation commented on SEND provision and support needed for children and their families. The intention is to align the ARP with best SEND practice in accordance with the requirements of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), and replace subsidised childcare places with term time funded 15 and 30 hours Early Years Entitlement places for 2, 3 and 4 year olds with additional needs, alongside mainstream children.

12 CE S258 Hackney Home to School Travel Policy

12.1 Introducing the report, The Mayor confirmed that Hackney's SEND Strategy for 2022-2025 set out the Council's vision to provide an excellent, inclusive and equitable local experience for all Hackney children and young people with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) and that all young people and children should be able to access the right support at the right time and be able to travel easily to an inclusive local school. No child should be prevented from accessing education because they could not get to school. The proposed consultation would help the Council find out about current travel arrangements

and develop an overall home to school travel policy for Hackney that is clear, and which promotes sustainable and independent forms of travel.

12.2 Deputy Mayor Anntoinette Bramble, Cabinet Member for Education, Young People and Children's Social Care, welcomed the proposed policy which she believed would help meet the aspirations of the Council to facilitate the independence of children and young people.

RESOLVED:

It is recommended that Cabinet approve a consultation on a new home to school travel policy for Hackney during the spring term of 2024.

REASONS FOR DECISION

The reasons for the decision were included in the printed decisions, published on the 23 January 2024, and can be <u>found here</u>.

DETAILS OF ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

No other options were considered.

13 F S243 Housing Revenue Account Budget 2023/24 including Tenants Rents and Service Charges

- 13.1 Mayor Woodley regretted that as a result of underfunding by the Government the Council would have to increase rent for Council tenants in order to keep delivering services that residents relied on. In response to the challenges of the age and condition of the Council's housing stock, more would be invested into repairs, retrofit, and advice and support for residents.
- 13.2 Cllr Clayeon McKenzie, Cabinet Member for Housing Services and Resident Participation, introduced the report and confirmed that the Council was still feeling the impact of inflation, and many of the Council's residents were still feeling the impact of the continued cost of living crisis. Despite the proposed increases in rent, Hackney's rents would still remain amongst the lowest in London and would compare favourably with rents charged by Housing Associations. In addition, the Council remained committed to assisting residents who faced financial hardships.
- 13.3 Mayor Woodley, Deputy Mayor Bramble, and Cllr Mete Coban, Cabinet Member for Climate Change, Environment and Transport, spoke in support of the report, welcoming the expansion of the DLO service, the improvement in the response to issues related to mould and damp, and Cllr McKenzie's support with residents' casework.

RESOLVED:

Cabinet is recommended to:

1. To approve the HRA budget proposals as set out in Section 6 and Appendix 1.

- 2. To approve the increase in rent of 7.7% in line with the Social Housing Regulator's rent ceiling and agree that rents will increase on average by £8.91 from £115.68 per week to £124.59 per week with effect from Monday 1st April 2024.
- 3. To approve the increase in HRA fees and charges as set out in Appendix 2.
- 4. To approve the increase in tenant service charges as set out in paragraph 6.14; and the service charges for the Concierge service as set out in paragraph 6.16.
- 5. To approve the increase in Travellers charges at 7.7% as set out in paragraph 6.21.
- 6. To approve the increase in Shared Ownership rent at 7.7% as set out in paragraph 6.22.
- 7. To delegate to the Group Director of Finance and Corporate Resources in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing Services and Resident Participation and Cabinet Member for Finance, Insourcing and Customer Services the setting of communal heating charges to reflect the unit costs of utilities.
- 8. To agree the Housing Capital Programme budget as set out in paragraph 6.33 to be included in the overall Council Capital budget for approval as part of the Council Budget and Council Tax Setting Report to be approved at February 2024 Cabinet.

The reasons for the decision were included in the printed decisions, published on the 23 January 2024, and can be <u>found here</u>.

DETAILS OF ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

The HRA covers all income and expenditure relating to the portfolio of housing stock owned by the Council. It is required by the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 to be ring-fenced from the Council's General Fund. The legislation specifies that only expenditure relating to the Council's landlord role can be charged to the HRA and, by extension, funded by the rents charged to tenants. The Council has a legal duty to ensure that the account remains solvent and to prepare a long-term business plan annually that keeps this under regular review.

Preparing the 30-year HRA Business Plan involves a long-term assessment of the funding needed to deliver landlord duties alongside wider strategic housing objectives. This involves detailed modelling of operating resource requirements, capital investment plans and external funding streams against wider environmental factors such as macroeconomic assumptions and potential legislative changes.

The 2024/25 budget has been built from the 30 Year HRA Business Plan and reviewing the base budget, including current forecasts of items of essential

expenditure, maintenance and investment to preserve the housing service and its assets.

Alternative rent increases were considered in setting the budget, but any reduction to the rent rise as set by the Regulator of Social Housing in the Rent Standard would result in additional savings that would impact on services to tenants, and substantial savings for the Government in the subsidy of Housing Benefit. A reduction in income would also have a long term impact on future rent levels and income and the ability to deliver front line services and invest in the Housing stock.

14 CHE S278 Draft Future Shoreditch Area Action Plan Public Consultation (Regulation 18)

- 14.1 The Mayor highlighted the increased popularity of Shoreditch as a cultural and economic destination, but that as a result the Council needed to ensure that its success did not damage its character for local residents and businesses.
- 14.2 Introducing the report, Cllr Guy Nicholson, Deputy Mayor for Delivery, Inclusive Economy and Regeneration, discussed the background to the development of the draft Area Action Plan, which reflected on the changes that had taken place in Shoreditch over the last few years, as well as looked forward to the area's future. The consultation would provide a further opportunity for members of the community to familiarise themselves with the daft plan and help establish a direction of travel.
- 14.3 Cllr Susan Fajana-Thomas, Cabinet Member for Community Safety and Regulatory Services, spoke in support, discussed the Hackney Night Time Economy, and welcomed the consultation.

RESOLVED:

Cabinet is recommended to:

- 1. Approve the draft Future Shoreditch Area Action Plan, including the Direction of Travel document (Appendix 2), for public consultation.
- 2. Delegate authority to the Group Director of Climate Homes and Economy to make minor changes ahead of consultation.

REASONS FOR DECISION

The reasons for the decision were included in the printed decisions, published on the 23 January 2024, and can be <u>found here</u>.

DETAILS OF ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

Consultation on a draft Future Shoreditch Area Action Plan is required to comply with Government regulations.

The alternative was to move onto a Regulation 19 consultation. This was considered to not provide enough opportunity for communities to feedback on the plan before adoption.

15 CED S294 Hackney a Place for Everyone – Voluntary and Community Sector Grants Programme 2024/25

- 15.1 The Mayor celebrated the important role that voluntary and community sector organisations (VCS) played in the Borough, the achievements that could be seen throughout Hackney, and that the Council was able to continue to offer support to the VCS to help the Council do more and reach more residents.
- 15.1 Cllr Kennedy also welcomed the support that the proposed £2.5m grants programme, which was now in its third year, would offer Hackney's VCS. Cllr Kennedy provided Cabinet with details of the specific grants in the programme and highlighted the proposed use of £65k to undertake a council wide review of VCS investment, as it was unlikely that the Council could be as generous in future years.
- 15.3 Deputy Mayor Bramble thanked Cllr Kennedy and Officers for their work on the grants programme, especially in relation to the development of grants related to children and young people.

RESOLVED:

Cabinet is recommended to :-

- 1. Agree the timetable for the Hackney Voluntary and Community Sector Open Grants Programme for 2024/25
- 2. Agree that the following funding streams can be launched through the programme:
 - Project Grants for up to £20,000 for one or two years from April 2024.
 - Community Chest grants for up to £1,000 for one year for short term projects or one-off activities from April 2024 (with four grant rounds spread throughout the year)
 - Children and Young people activity based grants of up to £20,000 over one year totalling £225,000 from April 2024.
- 3. Agree the second year of funding of advice grants as set out in Appendix one, totalling £922,500.
- 4. Note that £77,826 remains set aside to meet some of the identified gaps in provision and provide additional capacity to the advice system.
- 5. Agree one year funding for Specialist grants totalling £719,066 as set out in Appendix One.
- 6. Agree in regards to Community Infrastructure grants to award a third year of funding (of a total of three) for 20 Community Infrastructure organisations at £19,800 each per annum and a second year of funding (of a total of two) for four community infrastructure organisations at £19,800 each.

- 7. Note the carry over of £25,000 development funding for Community Infrastructure that can be deployed to support development and capacity building to enable gaps in geography or community to be addressed.
- 8. To continue to set aside £200,000 of the grant programme budget provision for financial intervention for organisations at risk of closure and delegate authority to approve grants to the Head of Policy and Strategic Delivery in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Health, adult social care, voluntary sector and leisure.
- 9. Agree to use £65,000 of the grant program reserves to increase organisational capacity in order to undertake a council wide review of our investment in the VCS
- 10. Agree to contribute to the London borough's grant scheme administered by London Councils 2024/25 and note that the contribution will be in the region of £208,093
- 11. To delegate authority to approve the Project Grants 2024/25 including Community Chest, Physical Activity and Children and Young People's Grants, as well as the deployment of resources to address and/or meet any gaps and capacity in Advice Services or Community Infrastructure grants, to the Head of Policy and Strategic Delivery in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Health, adult social care, voluntary sector and leisure, and the Portfolio Holder for education, young people and children's social care

The reasons for the decision were included in the printed decisions, published on the 23 January 2024, and can be <u>found here</u>.

DETAILS OF ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

Given the budgetary pressures facing the Council the future of the VCS Grants Programme is regularly reviewed. However, consideration has been given to the reductions in public spending through welfare cuts and reduced grants to local government which can lead to increased demands upon the VCS. The unique position of the VCS to respond to the needs of the most vulnerable and disadvantaged residents as well as its ability to deliver added value e.g. through inward investment and volunteering necessitates a grant programme that ensures that the sector can continue to thrive and build resilience to mitigate the impacts of the pandemic and in the face of further budget reductions.

Whilst procurement resources the VCS, the investment through the Council's grants programme helps to maintain a thriving third sector and a wide range of suppliers. Funding the sector through grants ensures that it can identify new needs and new ideas and innovate and test new solutions. It enables added value activity that complements direct or procured service delivery and can fund open universal activity. The sector is also able to use grant funding to respond to specific challenges in regards to community cohesion by providing grassroots community based activity that builds cohesion and community action and the support that is needed by our most disadvantaged and vulnerable residents.

16 F S279 Gender and Ethnicity Pay Gap 2023

- 16.1 Confirming Hackney's commitment to being an anti-racist Council, the Mayor also confirmed the commitment to lead on transparency which is why, as well as the statutory gender pay gap report, the Council also published an ethnicity pay gap report. It was hoped that this would set an example to other employers.
- 16.2 Cllr Williams provided detail on the legislative framework underpinning the report and the calculation methodology. The snapshot of pay was taken on 31 March 2023 and the gender pay gap in Hackney remained in favour of women, with the median hourly rate for women at £20.74, and £19.65 for men. The ethnicity pay gap had marginally decreased, in part because of the insourcing of staff in Parking and Markets. Work was underway to continue to reduce the ethnicity pay gap and improve the mean ethnicity pay gap by at least 1% over the following two years, and to better understand the intersectional impact of pay on gender in conjunction with other protected characteristics.
- 16.3 Mayor Woodley welcomed the report, particularly the work on intersectionality, and Cllr Williams thanked Officers for their work.

RESOLVED:

Cabinet and Council are invited to note the contents of this report.

REASONS FOR DECISION

The reasons for the decision were included in the printed decisions, published on the 23 January 2024, and can be <u>found here</u>.

17 F S297 Hackney Light and Power Residential Solar PV Pilot

- 17.1 The Mayor spoke to the Council's environmental record, highlighted the desire to expand the capacity to generate solar energy in the Borough, and shared her recent experiences visiting Parkwood Primary school and Stoke Newington Secondary School to see their newly installed solar panels. This work would help contribute to the Council's fairness agenda.
- 17.2 Introducing the report, Cllr Coban reminded Cabinet of the Banister House project, and the impact that had had. The proposals sought to take that project one step further and install 4,000 solar panels to generate 1MW every year from 2024, the equivalent of the clean energy power consumption of 700-800 homes. Results of the project would include the creation of local green jobs and provide support with energy bills for vulnerable residents.
- 17.3 Cllr McKenzie welcomed the report, highlighting both the benefits this would have for residents and that this was a practical solution with long term benefits.

RESOLVED:

Cabinet is recommended to:

- 1. Agree the proposed approach as set out in paragraphs 4.1 to 4.25 of this report for setting up Hackney's branded residential solar project to supply locally generated solar energy to residents in the Borough.
- 2. Delegate authority to the Group Director of Finance in consultation with the Hackney Light and Power Delivery Board; and, with the Cabinet Member for Energy, Sustainability and Transport to:
 - proceed with plans set out in the Hackney Light and Power Residential Solar Business Case (Appendix 1)
 - agree the final lists of sites and buildings to be included in the pilot
 - enter into contracts and create all other necessary or ancillary agreements with suppliers in accordance with the strategies set out in the report and relevant business case.
- 3. Spend approval of up to £1.96m is requested of capital investment by the council to enable design, installation and operation of a solar powered system as outlined in this paper.

The reasons for the decision were included in the printed decisions, published on the 23 January 2024, and can be <u>found here</u>.

DETAILS OF ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

As part of the LEA-funded business case development, an independent market assessment provided as Appendix 3 was commissioned to explore a number of options for the installation of solar PV on Hackney's housing estates. The other options explored by the Council which were subsequently rejected include:

Option 1 - Energy Local Clubs

This approach is delivered by a Community Interest Company that has designed a means for local people to benefit from local energy through Energy Local Clubs. This enables households to join together and use local, clean power when it is generated. A better price is agreed for local generators and residents reduce their bills.

Option 2 - Solar Sharing Microgrid

This approach involves sharing the benefits of solar panels with the residents. Instead of residents each having their own supplier, the landlord (or new group) would buy all of the electricity for the block and sell this, along with the solar energy, to residents as needed.

Option 3 - Peer-to-Peer Exchange

This approach involves a peer-to-peer energy exchange to increase the energy provision efficiency and divide the value between generators and consumers. The concept of peer-to-peer is also known as a shared economy, and it is typically implemented in a local grid system. Peer-to-peer energy trading typically involves a group of participants, including generators, and consumers. Peers buy or sell energy directly from each other without intermediating conventional energy suppliers.

Option 4 - Solar Microgrid

This solar microgrid solution is able to supply residents and the landlord directly with energy produced from the solar PV on-site. The solution uses a Power Division Control System (PDCS). The function of a PDCS is to share a single source of energy generation to multiple, separately connected units, behind the meter, while conforming to all safety and network regulations.

All of the above solutions offer financial benefits to residents, but none provide the option for a return on investment for the Council and were rejected on this basis.

18 CHE S292 Hackney Serious Violence Duty Strategy (SVDS) 2024- 2027

- 18.1 Mayor Woodley stated that the safety and wellbeing of residents was a priority for the Council, and that the proposals would ensure a multi-agency approach to reducing serious violence to make Hackney a safe place to live, work and visit.
- 18.2 Introducing the report, Cllr Fajana-Thomas discussed the priorities that the strategy laid out for the following three years, which included violence against women and girls; domestic abuse; serious sexual violence; gangs and serious violence against young people; hate crime; and, serious violence in the night time economy. Cllr Fajana-Thomas also confirmed that the strategy would be overseen by the Community Safety Partnership.

RESOLVED:

It is recommended that Hackney Cabinet approves the Hackney Serious Violence Duty Strategy 2024 to 2027.

REASONS FOR DECISION

This is a statutory responsibility and the SVDS 2024 to 2027 will significantly support our Community Safety Partnership's response to reducing serious violence in Hackney.

DETAILS OF ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

This is a statutory requirement and therefore an options analysis is not applicable.

19 CHE S285 Markets, Shop Fronts & Street Trading Strategy 2024-2029

- 19.1 Mayor Woodley welcomed the valuable contribution of markets to Hackney, but noted that although the majority were doing well and were vibrant spaces for residents and visitors, the Council needed to ensure that it planned effectively for their long term sustainability.
- 19.2 Cllr Fajana-Thomas introduced the report and discussed the 7 missions contained within the strategy; a safe and inclusive shopping experience; fair and transparent markets; financially secure and sustainable markets; supported enterprise and business growth; mental health and wellbeing of market traders; a future for young entrepreneurs; and, Hackney markets going green. Cllr Fajana-Thomas stated her confidence that the strategy would enable markets

to flourish and keep pace with the needs of our community, and thanked Officers for their work.

RESOLVED:

This report recommends that Cabinet:

- 1. Approves the final draft of the Market Strategy 2024-2029 and the recommendations contained within (as set out in Appendix 1) to be actioned and implemented.
- 2. Delegates Authority to the Director Environment and Climate Change (formerly Strategic Director Sustainability and Public Realm) to approve any add ons or amendments to the Market Strategy 2024-2029 following Cabinet approval.

REASONS FOR DECISION

The reasons for the decision were included in the printed decisions, published on the 23 January 2024, and can be <u>found here</u>.

DETAILS OF ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

Adopting no future strategy was considered but rejected due to the risks involved in sustaining the Borough's Markets and street trading activities - Please refer to Section 5.6 (Risk Assessment).

20 Schedule of Local Authority School Governor Appointments

20.1 Deputy Mayor Bramble discussed the recommendations, thanked governors throughout the Borough for their tireless work in Hackney's schools making sure the Borough's children and young people had the best start in life, and spoke to her own personal and rewarding experience as a school governor.

RESOLVED:

Cabinet is recommended to approve the following nominations as set out below:

| Governing Body | Name | Date Effective |
|-----------------------------|--------------|-----------------|
| St Paul's with St Michael's | Alex Doherty | 22 January 2024 |
| C of E Primary School | - | |
| St Monica's Catholic | James Hill | 22 January 2024 |
| Primary School | | |
| Jubilee Primary School | Max Lawton | 22 January 2024 |

21 Exclusion of the Press and Public

RESOLVED: THAT the press and public be excluded from the proceedings of the Cabinet during consideration of Exempt items 15 - 16 on the agenda on the grounds that it is likely, in the view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that were members of the public to be present, there would be

disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 2 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 as amended.

22 CE S293 Children's Centres Childcare Consultation - Exempt Appendix

22.1 The Cabinet agreed that no further consideration of the exempt appendices in relation to agenda item 11 was required.

23 F S297 Hackney Light and Power Residential Solar PV Pilot - Exempt Appendices

23.1 The Cabinet agreed that no further consideration of the exempt appendices in relation to agenda item 17 was required.

24 Urgent Exempt Business

24.1 There were no new exempt items for consideration.

Duration of the meeting: 5.35 - 6.34 pm